

THE 28TH NEDLAC ANNUAL NATIONAL SUMMIT

Resilience in the face of adversity: Social partner's preparedness for crises



TABLE OF CONTENTS

1	INTR	ODUCTION	3
2	KEY	HIGHLIGHTS OF THE SUMMIT	3
3		Γ A: NEDLAC 2022/23 PERFORMANCE REPORT BACK	
	3.1	OPENING ADDRESS	3
	3.2	KEYNOTE ADDRESS: SOCIAL PARTNERSHIP IN THE CURRENT CONTEXT	
	3.3	NEDLAC'S PERFORMANCE 2022/23 AND OVERVIEW OF THE COVID REPORT	5
	3.4	REFLECTIONS ON NEDLAC'S PERFORMANCE	6
	3.4.1	Business	6
	3.4.2	Community	6
	<i>3.4.</i> 3	Labour	7
4	PAR	Г B: SOCIAL PARTNERS RESPONDING TO CRISIS SITUATIONS	7
	4.1	CHARACTERISING CRISIS SITUATIONS FACING SOUTH AFRICA	7
	4.2	INTERNATIONAL EXPERIENCES IN RESPONDING TO CLIMATE INDUCED CRISIS SITUATIONS	9
	4.3	COMMUNITY PREPAREDNESS WHEN RESPONDING TO CRISIS SITUATIONS	10
	4.4	COLLABORATING TO ADDRESS FREIGHT RAIL CRISIS SITUATION	10
	4.5	RESPONDING TO OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY CHALLENGES IN MINES	11
	4.6	RESPONDING TO THE CHOLERA EPIDEMIC	12
	4.7	SOCIAL PARTNERS JOINT RESPONSE TO THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC	13
5	CON	CLUDING REMARKS	14



1 INTRODUCTION

The 28th Nedlac Annual Summit with the theme, "Resilience in the face of adversity: Social partner's preparedness for crises" was held on 08 September 2023 at Gallagher Convention Centre, Midrand.

With South Africa experiencing unforeseen events with greater frequency and intensity, the Summit focussed on how the country can be more prepared for crisis-type situations notwithstanding ongoing systemic challenges. The Summit also provided an opportunity for participants to receive and consider a report on the activities of Nedlac for the 2022-2023 financial year.

2 KEY HIGHLIGHTS OF THE SUMMIT

- The summit called for a unified and proactive response to deal with crises
- South Africa is facing a poly-crisis and thus requires a poly-response
- · Nedlac received an unqualified audit for the third year in a row
- 90% of Southern Africa will experience drought with significant variability by the end of the century
- South Africa faces multiple climate-induced crises that requires proactive responses
- The Summit made an urgent appeal for a clear chain of command and more resources to tackle disasters

3 PART A: NEDLAC 2022/23 PERFORMANCE REPORT BACK

3.1 Opening address

The opening address by Minister of Employment and Labour, Mr Thembelani Thulas Nxesi emphasized the importance of collaboration among all stakeholders, including government, business, labour, and the community, stressing the need to work together to address pressing challenges.

The Minister commended Nedlac's performance for the 2022-2023 financial year, noting the organisation's role in influencing policy and legislation, including areas such as electricity, procurement, gender-based violence, and education. It emphasized the need for continued improvement and efficiency in the labour market, particularly the Labour Court's backlogs.

It discussed the slow progress in labour market reform and the need for expedited negotiations among social partners. It further underscored the importance of addressing issues related to non-standard employment relations, while preserving workers' rights.

The address acknowledged the importance of a rapid response to crises, citing the example of the response to the COVID-19 pandemic. It emphasized the need for social partners to collaborate on addressing challenges like high food and fuel prices, building resilience, and finding innovative solutions to future crises.

3.2 Keynote address: Social Partnership in the Current Context

The keynote address by the Deputy President of South Africa, Mr Paul Mashatile, highlighted Nedlac's historical significance in shaping South Africa's labour market and fostering social partnership. It acknowledged Nedlac's role in crafting essential labour-related legislation, such as the Basic Conditions of Employment Act, Labour Relations Act, and Employment Equity Act.

The address highlighted the persistent challenges in the labour market, including racial and gender disparities, skills shortages, and high unemployment rates, especially among Africans. It noted that the COVID-19 pandemic exacerbated these challenges, leading to job losses in various sectors.

In his address, the Deputy President highlighted a number of positive developments, including the decline in the unemployment rate from the first to the second quarter of 2023 and the significance of social compacts in addressing South Africa's most pressing problems. Applauded was the commitment of business leaders to collaborate with government on economic reconstruction, emphasising the need for reciprocity and delineating roles and responsibilities in such agreements.

The address underscored the significance of addressing climate change and the need for a just transition to a more environmentally friendly future. It praised the efforts of the Presidential Climate Commission in building social compacts at various levels to manage the impacts of climate change.

Social partners were urged to strengthen their collaboration and work towards win-win solutions for the country. The importance of principles such as trust-building, transparency, pragmatism, and patience in the process were also emphasised.

The address called for social partners to prepare for challenges, including healthcare crises, natural disasters, deteriorating infrastructure, and rising crime rates. Building resilience and addressing these issues will require collective efforts.

The Deputy President's address concluded by encouraging social partners to reflect on past achievements, assess the current situation, and voice their opinions on major policy issues for the next decade, especially as South Africa celebrates 30 years of democracy.

3.3 Nedlac's Performance 2022/23 and Overview of the Covid report

The report, presented by the Nedlac Executive Director Ms Lisa Seftel, identified the key challenges including the declining GDP growth, high unemployment rates, and disparities in employment opportunities for women. It also highlighted the impact of load shedding, energy provision, and inflation on the country's economic outlook.

It emphasized the importance of policy initiatives and legislative measures to address economic challenges. Key Bills and dialogues related to economic matters such as the Electricity Amendment Bill and reforms in the labour market were highlighted. It also touched on energy security, trade industry, and small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs).

The report highlighted the efforts made during the COVID-19 pandemic, through the Nedlac Rapid Response Task Team (NRTT). It emphasized the need for evidence-based decision-making, agility, and the importance of procurement reforms. The legacy programme for occupational health and safety was also highlighted as a crucial component of the response.

The report highlighted the need for greater trust and solidarity to build resilience and preparedness for crises, particularly in the context of climate change. It further acknowledged the importance of capacity building for social partners. Policy schools and leadership training were identified as essential for building effective partnerships. Improved communication and knowledge management.

The report provided insights into Nedlac's performance evaluation, including stakeholder satisfaction surveys and legislative tracking. It acknowledged the need for better performance and highlighted areas for improvement. The existential crisis was identified as being critical to the sustainability of Nedlac. It emphasized the importance of continued collaboration, sharing of information, understanding, and preparedness to navigate uncertain times.

3.4 Reflections on Nedlac's performance

3.4.1 Business

Business, represented by Mr Cas Coovadia, identified a series of crises plaguing South Africa, including declining GDP, rising inflation, escalating unemployment (particularly among the youth), mounting public debt, energy shortages (load shedding), deteriorating security conditions, the impact of climate change, and persistent constraints to growth. These issues have contributed to South Africa losing its appeal as an investment destination. It highlighted the volatility of global geopolitics, citing events like the Russia-Ukraine war and the country's foreign policy positions as having a profound impact on the future trajectory of South African economic policy. Thus, the need for careful consideration of South Africa's interests in international engagements was emphasised.

Business reiterated its commitment to Nedlac's success and its willingness to participate actively in collaborative efforts to address South Africa's challenges. It applauded Nedlac for the work done so far. It stressed the importance of Nedlac being able to facilitate social dialogue and collaboration and appropriate response to the poly-crises. It also urged Nedlac to concentrate on achieving as much consensus as feasible, but not at all costs. Therefore, it was essential to embrace disagreements and employ alternative processes when necessary.

3.4.2 Community

Community, represented by Mr Thulani Tshefuta, emphasized the critical role of civil society organisations in providing immediate responsive interventions during crises, as they possess the agility and responsiveness often lacking in government bureaucracy. It called for greater support for these organizations to maximize their impact on communities.

Community commended the organisation work including its recent efforts on dialogues on government budget planning, electricity generation, public employment schemes, and food distribution to vulnerable groups.

Nedlac's notable performance improvement was applauded. It further urged for a broader representation of civil society within Nedlac, emphasizing the need to update its founding documents to be more inclusive. Community called for collective actions by social partners to stimulate investment, economic growth, employment, and poverty alleviation. It emphasized the need to address critical constraints in energy, water, skills, infrastructure, transport, and logistics to drive economic growth.

It advocated a revision of macroeconomic and microeconomic policies in order to support reindustrialization and reduce human vulnerability and environmental degradation. The community voiced support for the extension of the social alleviation of distress grant and demanded its continuation until the implementation of a universal basic income grant.

3.4.3 Labour

Labour acknowledged the importance of the Nedlac platform as a model for social compacting in South Africa and worldwide. It stressed that the primary goal of Nedlac should always be addressing the nation's unemployment crisis, given that a large portion of the population remains jobless and South Africa stands as one of the most unequal countries globally.

Despite the progress made, Labour asserted that South Africa's socio-economic conditions continue to deteriorate due to neoliberal economic policies that prioritize austerity and monetary/fiscal measures. It mentioned the negative consequences of cost containment measures and the freezing of public sector hiring, which negatively affect workers' rights and the functioning of labour institutions like CCMA and the Labour Court.

Labour called for immediate intervention to end load shedding, rebuild essential state-owned enterprises, and address the challenges faced by municipalities. Furthermore, it emphasized the importance of providing more resources to law enforcement agencies to combat tax evasion, corruption, and crime.

The constituency also pointed out that the COVID-19 pandemic had revealed the stark realities of poverty and inequality in South Africa. To alleviate this, it urged for an increase in the social relief grant and called for its linkage to skills development and job opportunities.

In conclusion, Labour emphasised that all parties, including government, business, labour, and communities, must assume responsibility and collaborate to address these urgent challenges. It emphasised the need for an open dialogue, government action, business compliance with labour laws, community mobilisation, and workers' commitment to ensure workplace compliance with labour regulations and the fight against corruption.

4 PART B: SOCIAL PARTNERS RESPONDING TO CRISIS SITUATIONS

4.1 Characterising crisis situations facing South Africa

South Africa is confronted by a number of crises, each of which has a direct effect on the viability and affordability of insurance, thereby influencing the protection gap. These crises are

not insurmountable, but they do necessitate the collaborative efforts and partnerships of diverse stakeholders, including enterprises, government, and civil society.

The ongoing COVID-19 pandemic and the potential for future pandemics are high-impact crises. Therefore, there is a need for proactive measures to address these health-related risks and their far-reaching consequences.

Frequent power outages and load shedding are a significant challenge with profound implications for South Africa's economic stability. The electricity crisis has a ripple effect, impacting unemployment, economic growth, and public morale.

Inadequate maintenance of critical infrastructure, such as water systems, ports, rails, and roads, was highlighted as a growing concern. The lack of investment and maintenance in these areas can lead to property losses, hamper business recovery, affect insurability, and limit access to finance.

South Africa is experiencing an increase in climate change-related events, which can result in severe economic and social consequences. These events, such as floods and hurricanes, necessitate resilience-building efforts.

In addition to political tensions and global geopolitical factors, high unemployment and destitution rates were cited as sources of social and political risk. These dangers can exacerbate discontent, demonstrations, and social unrest.

Earthquakes, whether natural or induced by mining activities, are emerging as a concern, particularly in regions with extensive mining operations. These events can have devastating consequences and pose threats to infrastructure.

Crime, ranging from organized crime to petty crime and corruption, was identified as a pervasive issue. It intersects with many other crises, including energy, infrastructure, and economic challenges, making it a critical area of concern.

These crises are interlinked and cannot be viewed in isolation. For example, the lack of proper infrastructure can exacerbate the impact of weather-related events, while crime and corruption can impede efforts to address these crises effectively.

Instead of engaging in a blaming game, there is a need for immediate action and collaboration among stakeholders to implement solutions. To ensure South Africa's resilience in the face of adversity, it is of the utmost importance to resolve these crises collectively, with a concentration on implementation and collaboration. To this end, the summit functions as a

forum for bringing together experts and leaders committed to finding workable solutions to the nation's complex problems.

4.2 International experiences in responding to climate induced crisis situations

Theft and vandalism are significant problems that require immediate attention in South Africa. These obstacles undermine efforts to strengthen resilience and existing infrastructure. Consequently, exercising vigilance has never been more crucial.

The presentation highlighted the interdependence of extreme weather events, climate change, and sustainable development. It was noted that extreme weather events such as typhoons, hurricanes, and wildfires are having a growing impact on societies around the globe.

It highlighted that climate change is not a future threat but has been ongoing for decades. The presentation further pointed out that Southern Africa is experiencing a shift towards dryer conditions, which presents a severe challenge to the region's sustainability.

The lack of climate literacy in some areas poses a significant concern. In addition, regions with lower climate literacy are at higher risk of vulnerability to climate-related events, making education and awareness crucial components of resilience-building efforts.

The speech advocated a paradigm transition from government-centred, top-down approaches to community-led and -supported resilience initiatives. It highlighted the significance of incorporating local communities into resilience planning and action.

The risk assessment framework was introduced, which evaluates risks as a function of hazard, vulnerability, and resilience. The framework stresses the importance of reducing vulnerability and enhancing resilience as effective means of addressing climate-induced crises.

Community involvement was highlighted as essential in co-designing climate-smart infrastructure. The presentation provided examples of how local knowledge, when combined with scientific expertise, can result in innovative solutions and improved resilience.

Citizen science was praised as a valuable instrument for developing resilience. By involving citizens in data collection and monitoring efforts, it not only improves comprehension but also increases monitoring capabilities, particularly in areas where government resources are limited.

The presentation highlighted the need for a coordinated, unified approach to developing resilience. It called for increased collaboration between the scientific community, government bodies, and local communities in order to more effectively address climate-induced crises.

In conclusion, it was emphasised that South Africa confronts multiple crises caused by climate change that require urgent action. It is urged that the nation transition from reactive to proactive responses, recognising the importance of local communities and citizen science. In addition, stakeholders are encouraged to collaborate in a systemic and coordinated manner in order to establish climate-resilience. The presentation served as a call to action, urging participants to prioritise resilience-building efforts to safeguard the future of the nation.

4.3 Community preparedness when responding to crisis situations

This presentation focused predominantly on the critical aspects of community preparedness in South Africa in response to crisis situations. It emphasised the importance of establishing a distinct command structure for disaster response. This highlights the significance of having a unified leadership structure in crisis situations. A single decision-making authority can expedite the process and eliminate delays caused by multiple entities.

It also emphasised the significance of sustaining a workforce that is well-trained and sufficiently resourced. The recent crises in Kwazulu-Natal were met with praise for the effective response of ordinary citizens. The importance of adequate infrastructure and dependable communication systems in disaster response was emphasised. Given the increasing frequency and severity of natural disasters, a fund for disaster intervention was proposed.

The presentation stressed the importance of transcending political affiliations and focusing on the collective well-being of citizens. By adopting non-partisan approaches to disaster situations, government and other stakeholders can foster an effective mechanism to respond to these situations.

4.4 Collaborating to address freight rail crisis

This presentation provided critical insights into the challenges and collaborative efforts to address the freight rail crisis in South Africa.

In response to the continuous crisis in transport and logistics, it was recommended that the National Logistics Crisis Committee (NLCC) be established. This crisis must be addressed immediately due to its direct impact on the South African economy. This sense of urgency reflects the need for prompt and effective responses to maximise economic opportunities in international trade.

The presentation emphasized the significance of addressing security issues related to rail transport, including cable theft and vandalism. These challenges have direct parallels in international trade, where security measures, such as customs enforcement, play a vital role in ensuring the integrity of trade flows.

It was emphasised that regulatory impediments and red tape must be eliminated from the logistics industry. The NLCC's strategy encompasses both short- and long-term interventions to address the current crisis and to assure future competitiveness. Transparency and accountability are governing principles for the activities of the NLCC.

The presentation further highlighted the collaborative efforts between rail and port users and the sharing of experiences and solutions. The engagement of local communities in addressing security issues at the municipal level was stressed.

4.5 Responding to occupational health and safety challenges in mines

The focus of the speech was the crucial issue of occupational health and safety in the mining industry.

The historical context for occupational health and safety, which included significant loss of life in the Colebrook, Kinross, and Vaal reef disasters, demonstrated the importance of addressing safety concerns in the industry.

To this purpose, the Mine Health and Safety Act of 1996 has reduced the number of fatalities in the industry over time. The legal framework includes provisions for workers to refuse hazardous work and gives the Chief Inspector the authority to halt mining operations conducted in unsafe conditions.

Despite the progress made thus far, challenges remain, as evidenced by the recent rise in fatalities. The presentation emphasised the issue of "fall of ground" incidents, which are caused predominantly by mining pillars. This has become the leading cause of recent fatalities, with nearly nine reported during the fiscal year 2022-2023.

Several initiatives have been launched to resolve these obstacles. The Mine Health and Safety Council has established forums that include government, labour unions, and employers. These forums assess priority areas on a regular basis and work to reduce fatalities. Efforts are currently being made to engage at the regional level, bringing together stakeholders from various branches to participate in forums and collectively find solutions. Additionally, new technologies for monitoring underground conditions have been implemented to enhance safety.

The presentation emphasised the need for a multifaceted approach to effectively resolve safety issues. Collaboration between diverse parties, such as the government, mining companies, and labour unions, is essential. In addition, it drew attention to the emergent problem of illegal miners (also known as Zama Zamas) operating in hazardous conditions, prompting the Ministry of Police to intervene.

In conclusion, the speech illuminated ongoing challenges and interventions in occupational health and safety in the mining industry. Despite focusing on the mining industry, ensuring worker safety has implications that extend beyond the sector. A secure mining environment contributes to a more stable and productive workforce, which influences the mining sector's contributions to international trade and the South African economy as a whole. To overcome these obstacles and ensure a secure future for mine workers and the mining industry, collaboration and a multifaceted approach are essential.

4.6 Responding to the cholera epidemic

The presentation centred on building resilience to mitigate the effects of public health events, with cholera as the focal point. The report emphasised important aspects of international health regulations, South Africa's response to cholera outbreaks, and lessons learned from the COVID-19 pandemic.

The International Health Regulations (IHR) are a legally binding global health security framework designed to prevent, protect against, and control the international spread of diseases, according to the Department of Health. As a signatory to the IHR, South Africa is obligated to develop fundamental capacities for preparing for, detecting, and responding to public health incidents. Despite obstacles such as those encountered during the 2010 FIFA World Cup, the IHR plays a vital role in regulating international public health risks and minimising interference with international traffic and commerce.

Cholera, characterized by severe diarrhoea and often caused by poor water and sanitation conditions, was used as a case study. The presentation emphasized that individuals without access to safe water and sanitation facilities are at the highest risk of contracting cholera. Contaminated water and food sources can contribute to cholera transmission. As of July 31st, there were 1,280 reported cholera cases, with 52% affecting females and 199 confirmed cases. The outbreak led to 20 admissions and sadly resulted in the loss of 47 lives. A graphical representation showed the outbreak's progression, with a peak around June 2023, followed by a decrease in cases.

World Health Organization advises four pillars to enhance health preparedness and resilience: coordination, collaborative surveillance, community protection, clinical care, and access to countermeasures. South Africa's response included effective coordination, surveillance, community engagement, clinical care, and communication. The integration of lessons learned from the COVID-19 response and strong leadership at all levels contributed to the effectiveness of the cholera response.

Best practises included an integrated strategy, strong leadership, political commitment, effective communication, and interprovincial cooperation. Recommendations emphasised the non-negotiable nature of collective planning and response, intersectoral collaboration, and readiness in public health emergencies.

Despite efforts to contain the disease, the source of cholera contamination remained unidentified. Nevertheless, interventions have yielded positive results, with no new cholera cases have been reported for over 10 weeks since August 2023.

The presentation underscored the significance of international health regulations, effective response strategies, and the need for intersectoral collaboration in addressing public health events like cholera. It also emphasized the importance of preparedness and the lessons learned from previous challenges, such as the COVID-19 pandemic, in building resilience and ensuring the well-being of the population.

4.7 Social partners joint response to the covid-19 pandemic

This speech highlighted the critical role of social partners in responding to crises, with a concentration on the COVID-19 pandemic and its economic and social consequences. It emphasised the significance of collaboration between government, business, labour, and civil society in addressing South Africa's existential challenges.

It described the pre-pandemic challenges in South Africa as crises that threatened lives, livelihoods, and economic and social stability. Poverty, inequality, and unemployment were identified as persistent problems requiring immediate attention to continue the progress made since 1994.

During the pandemic, social stakeholders such as government, business, labour, and civil society demonstrated their capacity to mobilise resources and engage individually and collectively. Their response encompassed economic, social, and healthcare issues, as well as civil unrest, flooding, and economic problems.

As a response to the pandemic, the establishment of the Solidarity Fund demonstrated the ability to collect over R4 billion in donations from various sources. The fund efficiently targeted relief efforts, such as the distribution of vaccinations and assistance to affected communities.

B4SA, a business response initiative, drew together companies from diverse industries to save lives and livelihoods. Over 450 specialists from various disciplines were enlisted to address crucial issues, such as healthcare assistance, economic recovery, and vaccination programmes.

Effective governance structures, appropriate resource management, legal considerations, and transparent communications were identified as crucial components of effective responses. Despite disagreements on certain issues, social partners' ability to align and forge agreements was crucial.

As lessons from the pandemic response, the significance of surveillance systems, localization of critical product manufacturing, and clear communication were highlighted. The emphasis was placed on policymaking based on scientific evidence and responses to societal challenges.

South Africa continues to feel the economic effects of the pandemic, such as a decline in GDP and employment losses. Ongoing concerns include structural defects in areas such as energy, transport, logistics, crime, and corruption.

In addressing future crises, the presentation emphasised the need for sustained collaboration among social stakeholders. As a valuable resource, the role of Nedlac in coordinating and integrating the activities of social partners was highlighted.

In addressing crises and delineating a path for a more inclusive and prosperous South Africa, the presentation highlighted the importance of social partners and Nedlac. It emphasised the significance of sustained cooperation and learning from the past in order to confront the upcoming challenges.

5 CONCLUDING REMARKS

The 28th Nedlac Annual National Summit provided invaluable insights into the interconnected challenges facing South Africa, extending from labour and health to infrastructure and climate-induced crises. The recurrent theme of collaboration and unity among stakeholders throughout the Summit was the linchpin to addressing these complex issues. This call resonates with the global need for cooperative approaches in an increasingly interconnected world.

The focus on labour reforms reflected Nedlac's historical significance in shaping labour laws. This underscored the vital role of social dialogue in establishing sound labour policies. In the realm of international trade, labour standards and fair labour practices are integral components of trade agreements, and South Africa's commitment to social partnerships can serve as an example for other nations.

The discourse surrounding climate change resonates with the dynamics of global development policy. Climate change is a global issue with extensive implications for trade policies and practises. The necessity to strike a balance between economic development and environmental sustainability is a global concern. South Africa's efforts to collaborate with multiple stakeholders and integrate climate considerations into its policymaking are consistent with the worldwide trend of incorporating climate objectives into trade agreements.

The presentation on community preparedness contained valuable lessons for the social partners. Establishing clear leadership, investing in training and resources, engaging stakeholders, improving infrastructure and communication, allocating resources strategically, and adopting non-partisan approaches are key principles that can enhance a country's response mechanisms to crisis situations. These lessons underscore the importance of preparedness, collaboration, and effective governance in addressing challenges.

Efficient and reliable transportation networks are essential for facilitating global trade, and disruptions in supply chains, such as those caused by transportation challenges, can have cascading effects on international trade. The current freight rail challenges experienced by South Africa highlight the importance of collaboration, security, regulatory reform, and transparency in addressing the freight rail crisis and, by extension, in enhancing international trade. These principles are essential for ensuring the efficient movement of goods and promoting economic growth.

The summit also highlighted the critical role of preparedness and adherence to international standards, particularly in dealing with crises such as the COVID-19 pandemic and cholera outbreaks. This is particularly relevant in a global context where pandemics and other crises can disrupt global supply chains and trade flows. The joint response to the COVID-19 pandemic highlighted the resilience and adaptability of South Africa's social partners. Their ability to mobilize resources, coordinate efforts, and align responses with scientific evidence provided valuable lessons for international cooperation in addressing global crises. Lessons learned from South Africa's experiences emphasise the importance of comprehensive planning and alignment with global health and safety regulations.

The conclusion of the 28th Annual National Summit revealed that, while South Africa's challenges are nation-specific, they resonate with international themes in the fields of trade, labour, health, infrastructure, and environmental sustainability. Collaboration, preparedness, adherence to international standards, and the integration of economic, social, and environmental factors are essential for addressing the complex challenges of the twenty-first century. South Africa's experiences provide valuable insights for navigating the complex international landscape of trade, finance, and development policy.